
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
UNITED STATES MERIT SYSTEMS PROTECTION BOARD

JOSEPH P. CARSON, )
)
)Docket No.
)

Appellant )AT-1221-15-0092-W-1
)

v. )
) 
)

OFFICE OF SPECIAL COUNSEL, ) 
)
)

Agency )
)

APPELLANT’S PETITION FOR REVIEW

Per Board regulations at 5 C.F.R. §1201.114, the Appellant timely files a petition for

review (PFR) of the initial decision of January 13, 2015. 

Why the Members of the Board Should Recuse Themselves From This Petition for Review

Just as the members of Board did in an Order dated December 23, 2014, in Carson v.

MSPB, docket no. AT-1221-0637-W-1, they should recuse themselves from deciding this case

because of the conflict of interest present.  Neither MSPB nor OSC have Inspector Generals. 

MSPB is, in a real sense, OSC’s Regulator/Inspector General.  If OSC is over-zealous as a

prosecutor, MSPB controls its excesses via its adjudicatory function.  If OSC is negligent as an

investigator, then MSPB is supposed to determine and report it to the President and Congress,

per its special studies function, so the President has the information necessary to comply with his
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statutory duty to “take any action necessary” to correct it.  

Because MSPB has unlawfully renounced its duty to conduct special studies of OSC - it

has yet to conduct one since its creation in 1978 - when OSC law-breaking is alleged, MSPB

law-breaking is implicated.   From MSPB to decide the appellant is correct, it would indict itself. 

Therefore the Board should recuse itself, per 5 C.F.R. §1200.3, consistent with the reasoning of

MSPB regulations at 5 C.F.R. §1201.13.

Larger context of this appeal 

The larger context of this appeal is Mr. Carson’s years-long efforts to obtain a lawful

resolution of his claims of decades-long, compounded, continuing, civilization-threatening, law-

breaking in U.S. Office of Special Counsel (OSC) and U.S. Merit Systems Protection Board

(MSPB).  He publicly claims, whatever the risk to his professional engineer (PE) license, federal

job and pension, that  OSC is a decades-long, law-breaking fraud and MSPB is its decades-long

law-breaking enabler.  “Civilization-threatening” means Mr. Carson’s professional standing and

economic security are not the paramount values in this matter.1 

Board attorneys, including its Administrative Judges as well as its Chairman, Vice-

Chairman, and Member, have an attorney-client relationship with the Board, their employing

agency.  This attorney-client relationship apparently now trumps Ms. Grundmann’s, Ms.

Wagner’s and Mr. Robbins’ responsibilities as the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Member of

MSPB to ensure MSPB is faithfully implementing its statutory duties in its special studies

function by conducting the requisite special studies of Office of Special Counsel (OSC)

1 See www.broken-covenant.org for exhaustive detail about his specific claims of
OSC/MSPB law-breaking. 
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interpretation of and compliance with its non-discretionary statutory duties as an independent

disclosure channel and as a law enforcement agency with the singular jurisdiction and positive

mandate to protect federal employees from reprisal and other types of prohibited personnel

practices (PPPs). 2 

MSPB also fails or refuses to perform its special studies function of agency heads to

2 MSPB has plenty of records - or, more precisely, lack of records - to realize OSC is a
decades-long, law-breaking fraud.  This includes: 
1) OSC apparent failure in 35 years to ever review, as mandated, OPM regulations for possible
PPPs, per 5 U.S.C. §1212(a)(4) as demonstrated by its failure, in 35 years, to file a complaint
with the Board per 5 CFR §1203.11(a); 
2) its absolute (or near absolute) failure to ever seek to enforce its subpoena per 5 U.S.C.
§§1204(c) and 1212(b)(3); 
3) its near absolute failure to intervene in Board proceedings per 5 U.S.C. §1212(c) and 5 C.F.R.
§§1201.34(b) and 1201.114(g)(2); 
4) its paucity (relative to the number of PPP complaints it receives) to seek stays at the Board per
5 U.S.C. §1214(b)(1) and 5 CFR §1201.134; 
5) its paucity to seek corrective action for a PPP at the Board per 5 U.S.C. §1214(b)(3) and 5
CFR §1201.128; 
6) its paucity to seek disciplinary action for a PPP per 5 U.S.C. §1215(a)(1)(A); 
7) its failure or refusal to seek disciplinary action for an agency’s failure or refusal to comply
with a Board Order (it has apparently never done this in 35 years, despite literally thousands of
Board determinations of agency non-compliance with its Orders) per §1215(a)(1)(C); 
8) to seek disciplinary action per 5 U.S.C. §1215(a)(1)(B) for a violation of 5 U.S.C.
§1216(a)(3), (4), or (5); 
9) its paucity - if not complete failure - in making statutory required reports and
recommendations to the Board, per 5 U.S.C. §1214(b)(2)(B), for corrective actions for its
“reasonable grounds to believe” determinations that a PPP has occurred, exists, or is to be taken,
and; 
10) its apparent failure, for 35 years, to report to the Board, per 5 U.S.C. §1214(b)(2)(D), when
the agency takes actions to correct PPPs (the Board abets this OSC law-breaking by not
requiring, as part of its regulations for OSC to seek corrective action, per 5 CFR §1201.128, at
the Board that it has first made the required report to the Board per §1214(b)(2)(B) - since the
Board does not get this report, it has no clue when it fails to get the §1214(b)(2)(D) reports
either.      

MSPB is OSC’s decades-long law-breaking enabler by its failure or refusal to ask any questions -
or conduct the requisite special studies of OSC -  about all these disparities. 
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determine if they are complying with their non-discretionary statutory duty to “prevent PPPs” in

their agency - because of MSPB’s law-breaking failure or refusal to conduct the requisite special

studies, OSC continues to be a fraud, agency heads are precluded from being able to comply with

their duty to “prevent PPPs,” the President is prevented from complying with his primary

statutory duty to the 2 million members of the federal civil service, and America, as civilization

as whole, are at unnecessarily increased risk of a nuclear terrorist attack and/or other

catastrophes.3  

As Appellant understand Chairman Grundmann’s, Vice-Chairman Wagner’s and Member

Robbins’  apparent reasoning, their duties to lead MSPB are trumped by their duties “hold

paramount” the interests of MSPB, their client, when well-evidenced claims of MSPB law-

breaking are made.  Then they morph from “leaders” to lawyers - “hired guns” whose primary

loyalty is to protect the interests of MSPB, not to ensure MSPB is following the law so that a

foolhardy soul as the Appellant can do his positive legal duty as a licensed professional engineer

(PE) employed as a safety engineer in the Department of Energy to protect worker and public

health and safety.4   

3 Congress created a complex statutory system for the regulation of the management
culture in federal agencies, involving multiple, independent agencies performing complementary
functions for the regulation of the management culture in each agency.  So Congress tasked the
President, as head of the Executive Branch, “to take any action necessary so the federal civil
service embodied the merit system principles” see 5 U.S.C. §2301(c).  No one, anywhere, has
any objective basis to say, given the endless examples of dysfunction and corruption in federal
agencies that the “federal civil service embodies the merit system principles,” but this Board does
not have the professional honor to resign if the President fails or refuses to “take any action” to
correct it.  Shameful - and civilization-threatening.

4 Appellant understands that his licensing authority, the Tennessee Board of Architectural
and Engineer Examiners has, after his repeatedly requesting it, opened an investigation to
determine whether he has at least “reasonable belief” in his public claims of “decades-long,
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This professional ethical dilemma and conflict - to lead MSPB or to lawyer for MSPB - is

why MSPB, in 2007, was party to committing fraud on a federal court by claiming in a court

filing that it had issued regulations for its special studies function, when it never has.5   That is

why, despite Ms. Grundmann’s sworn pledge to the Senate, in her confirmation hearing in

October 2009  that she would ensure MSPB conducted the requisite “special studies” to

determine and report “as to whether the public interest in a civil service free of PPPs was being

adequately protected,” that over five years later, it has not. 6  

Apparently as a result of their professional ethical dilemma, Chairman Grundmann, Vice-

Chairman Wagner, and Member Robbins have repeatedly declined to request the Office of Legal

Counsel (OLC) of the Department of Justice review how MSPB is interpreting and applying its

“special studies” function in light of the complex system Congress created for the regulation of

the management culture in federal agencies.  This complex statutory scheme includes a number

of specific, complementary, statutory duties for agency heads, OSC, MSPB and the President -

all of which rely upon MSPB’s “special studies” function - specifically its statutory required

determination -  for necessary feedback.

compounded, continuing, civilization-threatening, law-breaking” in OSC and MSPB.  As a PE he
has a positive legal obligation to be “truthful and objective” in such claims.  That he has to go to
such lengths is just an indictment of the Board members and their lack of professional honor, if
not patriotism.  The same holds for Special Counsel Lerner and Deputy Special Counsel Cohen.

5 See MSPB’s April 30, 2007, “Response to Show Cause Order and Motion to Dismiss”
in Carson v. MSPB, docket no. 07-0445 (D.D.C), pages 6 and 7 of accompanying memorandum,
available via PACER and at
http://whsknox.blogs.com/ppp-2014/2015/opposition_show_cause.pdf.

6 Ms. Grundmann’s sworn, written, testimony to the Senate Confirmation Hearing is
available at http://whsknox.blogs.com/ppp-2014/2015/PreparedStatementGrundmann2009.pdf
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The result, in 2015, is a much diminished and more threatened America, with a battered

federal civil service in which the America people have record-low levels of trust - as Chairman

Grundmann, Vice-Chairman Wagner, and Member Robbins apparently play word games about

legal ethics and whether they the head of MSPB or if they are, in final analysis, MSPB’s “hired

guns,” out to protect its interests above all other considerations.  If they had the professional

honor, if they were, in fact, “especially qualified” for their positions, they would publicly resign

if OLC would not review 5 U.S.C. §1204(a)(3) and issue its authoritative opinion as to whether it

required MSPB to conduct the requisite special studies of OSC and individual agencies to

determine and report “as to whether the public interest in a civil service free of PPPs is being

adequately protected (in a given federal agency).” 7

How is the President (or the head of an intelligence community (IC) agency) to comply

with his duty, per 5 U.S.C. §2301(c), “With respect to any agency, the President (or head of IC

agency) shall.....take....any action.....necessary to ensure personnel management is based on and

embodies the merit system principles” without MSPB’s providing this determination, on an

agency specific basis?  How is the head of an non-IC agency, such as the Department of Energy,

to comply with his duty, per 5 U.S.C. §2302(c), to “prevent PPPs” without MSPB providing this

determination on an agency specific basis?   The simple answer is “he cannot,” which creates a

continuing  “any other significant change in the duties, responsibilities or working conditions”

7 The future for America and our unprecedented global civilization is indeed bleak if
vocationally privileged people as Chairman Grundmann, Vice-Chairman Wagner and Member
Robbins, who hold positions of significant public trust, will not publicly resign, if necessary, to
call attend to their inability to faithfully execute their duties, per their oaths of office.  Appellant
hopes, as one result of the decades-long OSC and MSPB law-breaking and the resultant,
ongoing, ethics disaster in the federal civil service, that nominees to such position will be directly
asked if they have such necessary professional honor in their Senate Confirmation hearings.   
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for every federal agency employee.

This plays out in MSPB employees as presiding official/Administrative Judge Brian

Bohlen engaging in similar contortions to protect the interests of MSPB, his client by legal

ethics.8   All AJ Bohlen had to do was determine Mr. Carson had “reasonable belief” in his

claims that OSC failed or refused to comply with a number of its specific non-discretionary

duties to protect him from reprisal in the Department of Energy in its investigation and closure of

his involved whistleblower reprisal complaints.  That would likely have forced the President, per

his duty to “take any action necessary,” to direct the Office of Legal Counsel (OLC) review the

approximately dozen specific civil service statutes in question and issue its authoritative opinion

as to their interpretation.  

Instead, by putting the interests of his client, MSPB, (as well as his self-interest in his

professional standing and economic security) before rule of law and a government Americans can

trust and believe in - he evaded considering whether Mr. Carson’s claims of OSC’s law-breaking

against him in failing or refusing to protect him as the law requires in investigating and closing

his involved whistleblower reprisal complaints to it were reasonable - “kicking the can down the

road,” allowing America and civilization to remain at unnecessarily increased risk of nuclear

terrorism or other catastrophe - all in the name of legal ethics.

MSPB’s failure or refusal to resolve Mr. Carson’s well-evidenced whistleblower

disclosure of its law-breaking failure or refusal to perform the requisite “special studies” to make

and report the statutory required determination is a personnel action on two levels - first against

8 MSPB’s “presiding officials” or “administrative judges” have NO statutory judicial
independence, unlike Administrative Law Judges (ALJ).
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only Mr. Carson for disregarding his whistleblower disclosure; then against every member of the

federal civil service for the significant change MSPB’s law-breaking creates in their working

conditions.  

Statutory Required “Conditions of Employment” for Appellant and Other Federal Agency
Employees

Every federal agency employee takes an “oath of office” on joining the federal civil

service, per 5 U.S.C. §3331.  By it they swear or affirm that they will “well and faithfully

discharge the duties of the office” they are entering.

In the context of federal agency employment the requirement to “well and faithfully

discharge the duties of the office” creates conditions on both the employee and the Executive

Branch officials responsible, by law, for the regulation of the management culture in the

employee’s agency. 

The Civil Service Reform Act of 1978 (CSRA) was a post-Watergate, post- Church

Committee reform for regulating the management culture in federal agencies, including

intelligence community (IC) agencies.9  It created a complex statutory framework involving

multiple independent agencies implementing complementary functions to regulate the

management culture in each federal agency so that each agency’s management culture would

“embody” the merit system principles, the bedrock values of the management culture in every

federal agency. 

Congress created this complex scheme for two reasons: 

9 The CSRA was the largest single largest legislative change for regulating the
management culture in the federal civil service from its creation in 1883 until the present.  MSPB
and OSC were created by the CSRA.
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1. Create a more uniform system for regulating the management culture for almost 300

federal agencies, and 

2. Congress knew better than to trust agencies to self-regulate their management cultures.

The statutory responsibilities of OSC and MSPB in regulating the management culture in

each federal agency are central to the following fundamental questions about the health of the

management culture in federal agencies, including IC agencies:

1. Can agency employees effectively bring forward concerns - do they obtain a timely and

objective resolution?

2. Are agency employees adequately protected from reprisal and other types of prohibited

personnel practices (PPPs)? 10

3. Is there an objective basis to answer questions 1 and 2?

Because of the decades-long law-breaking in OSC and MSPB, the answer to these three

questions is “no” or “we do not know” in every federal agency.  This creates “any other

significant change” in the working conditions for every agency employee - because the

government put itself under law that the working conditions in every federal agency would

“embody” the merit system principles - and unless each answer above has a “yes” answer in a

federal agency, its management culture does NOT embody the merit system principles, and a

significant change has occurred in the working conditions for that agency’s employees.  

This same reasoning is reflected “Code of Ethics for Government Employment,” 5 C.F.R.

§2635.101(a), “Basic obligations of public service,” and §2635.101(b), the 12 “General

10 PPPs, codified in 5 U.S.C. §2302, are agency violations of one or more of the “merit
system principles,” codified in 5 U.S.C. §2301 as the bedrock values for regulating the
management culture in ALL federal agencies by the CSRA.  
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Principles.”  The government put itself under law to provide the working conditions in federal

agencies - specifically that they “embody” the merit system principles - so that federal agency

employees are able to comply with their obligations to the government, as their employer, and the

American public, by §2635.101(a) and (b).  Why?  As §2635.101(a) itself states:  “To ensure that

every citizen can have complete confidence in the integrity of the Federal Government”

Few citizens have anywhere near “complete confidence in the integrity of the Federal

Government” in 2014.11 This is, in essential part, because of MSPB’s continuing failure to

conduct the “special studies” necessary for the President (or heads of IC agencies) to “take any

action necessary” to ensure the management culture in each federal agency “embodies” the merit

system principles.   That is why this IRA appeal exists.

Grounds to vacate and reverse the initial decision by 5 C.F.R. §1201.115

1. The initial decision is based on erroneous interpretation of the statute and the
erroneous application of the law to the facts of the case

As described above, MSPB’s failure or refusal to address Mr. Carson’s well-evidenced

whistleblower disclosure of OSC’s failure or refusal to comply with a number of its non-

discretionary duties to protect him in investigating and closing his involved whistleblower

reprisal complaints, is now a thrice-compounded “significant change in his working conditions,”

given his oath of office, per 5 U.S.C. §3331; the “basic obligations of public service,” per 5

C.F.R. §2635.101(a); his positive legal and professional duties as a licensed professional

11 If asked whether they had “complete confidence in the integrity of the federal
government,” many Americans would now answer “no” with undisguised scorn, to the shame of
MSPB.
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engineer (PE)12 ;  5 C.F.R. §2635.101(b), “General Principles,” 5 and 11; and 5 U.S.C. §2301(b),

“Merit System Principles,” 4 and 9.13

The initial decision’s legal analysis that no personnel action occurred (pages 3 and 4) is

almost completely devoid of legal reasoning, contrary to MSPB precedent in Spithaler v. OPM, 1

MSPR 587 (1980).  It cites no specific law that Mr. Carson claimed OSC violated in its

investigation and closure of his involved whistleblower reprisal complaints, instead it uses term

“incompetent” to gloss OSC’s uncontested law-breaking against Mr. Carson. It failed to perform

the  “case-by-case” analysis as required by MSPB precedent, see Shivaee v. Department of Navy,

74 MSPR 383, 388 (1997), before reaching its cursory conclusion  - a conclusion contrary to

Shivaee - that OSC’s law-breaking failure to protect Mr. Carson from reprisal, thereby

compounding the reprisal - could not possibly dissuade a reasonable coworker from making a

protected disclosure or engaging in a protected activity  - so it cannot be a personnel action for

being “any other significant change in duties, responsibilities, or working conditions.”

OSC has a positive, non-discretionary, statutory duty to protect the appellant and a

number of specific, non-discretionary, statutory duties to do so.  Appellant’s appeal details them

and how OSC, undoubtedly, failed to comply with a number of them - OSC does not contest it

12 Mr. Carson has been a PE for 30 years, his being a PE qualified him for his initial
employment in the Department of Energy, his agency reimburses him for his PE license renewal
fee.  He is a PE in Tennessee, the legally binding “Rules of Professional Conduct” of the
Tennessee State Board of Archectural and Engineering Examiners can be found in Tennessee
Regulations, Chapter 0120-02, Rule 0120-.02, et seq.

13 “Thrice-compounded” - The Department of Energy, OSC and, now, MSPB all collude
to make it impossible for Mr. Carson to do his duty to protect others - and claim “no, it’s not a
significant change in your working conditions when your are punished for doing your job, OSC
fails to protect you, and MSPB says “situation normal.”

11



failed to comply with these duties to protect the appellant.

So the AJ engages in brazen hand-waving to effect, “there is nothing here, move along.”

He cannot even find the moral courage to list the specifics of Mr. Carson’s appeal, because then

we could not whitewash them with word “incompetent” - he might have to use “unlawful,” and

once that happens, MSPB’s cover-up of OSC’s law-breaking failure to protect Mr. Carson from

DOE’s whistleblower reprisal for his being so foolish to put his duty to protect others before his

economic interest, would end.    

2 New and material evidence or legal argument is available that was not available
when the record for the initial decision closed. 

As new and material evidence or legal argument, the appellant is submitting, as part of

this PFR, new and material evidence or legal argument, specifically:  

1. OSC’s federal register announcement of January 22, 2015 about proposed rulemaking to

allow federal agency contractor employees to make whistleblower disclosures to it, and

2. Appellant’s whistleblower disclosure to OSC, per 5 U.S.C. §1213(g)(1), of January 28,

2015, that OSC’s proposed rulemaking was a violation of 5 U.S.C. §1213(g)(1) and an

abuse of authority.

This is material and relevant because OSC’s credibility and good-faith in following the law is

central to this appeal. 

Conclusion

For all these reasons, Appellant respectfully requests the Board either recuse itself or,

better yet, find the moral courage to reverse the initial decision and determine that a “personnel

action” occurs when OSC fails or refuses to comply with central, specific, aspects of its non-
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discretionary statutory duty to protect federal employees from reprisal when it investigates and

closes its investigation of their reprisal complaints.   All the Board likely has to do to force a

lawful resolution of this matter is find the moral courage to objectively evaluate as to whether the

Appellant has “reasonable belief” in his claims of OSC law-breaking in its investigation and

closure of the involved whistleblower complaints. 

Respectfully,

___________/s/_________________________
Joseph P. Carson, P.E. Appellant  
10953 Twin Harbour Drive
 Knoxville, TN 37934 
865-300-5831
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OFFICE OF SPECIAL COUNSEL 

5 CFR Part 1800 

Revision of Regulations To Allow 
Federal Contractors, Subcontractors, 
and Grantees To File Whistleblower 
Disclosures With the U.S. Office of 
Special Counsel 

AGENCY: U.S. Office of Special Counsel. 
ACTION: Notice of proposed rulemaking. 

SUMMARY: The U.S. Office of Special 
Counsel (OSC) proposes revising its 
regulations to accept covered 
disclosures of wrongdoing from 
employees working under a contract or 
grant with the Federal government. 
DATES: Written or electronic comments 
must be received on or before March 23, 
2015. 
ADDRESSES: You may submit comments 
by any of the following methods: 

• Federal eRulemaking Portal: http:// 
www.regulations.gov. Follow the 
instructions for submitting comments. 

• Email: lterry@osc.gov. Include 
‘‘NPRM’’ in the subject line of the 
message. 

• Fax: (202) 254–3711. 
• Mail: Office of General Counsel, 

1730 M Street NW., Suite 218, 
Washington, DC 20036. 

• Hand Delivery/Courier: Office of 
General Counsel, 1730 M Street NW., 
Suite 218, Washington, DC 20036. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Lisa 
V. Terry, General Counsel, U.S. Office of 
Special Counsel, by telephone at (202) 
254–3600, by facsimile at (202) 254– 
3711, or by email at lterry@osc.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The U.S. 
Office of Special Counsel (OSC) 
proposes to revise its regulations to 
expand who may file a whistleblower 
disclosure with OSC. This revision will 
allow employees of Federal contractors, 
subcontractors, and grantees to disclose 
wrongdoing within the Federal 
government if they work at or on behalf 
of a U.S. government component for 
which OSC has jurisdiction to accept 
disclosures. 

Congress implemented the Civil 
Service Reform Act of 1978 (CSRA), 
Public Law 95–454, 92 Stat. 1111, and 
the Whistleblower Protection Act 
(WPA), Public Law 101–12, 103 Stat. 17, 
codified at 5 U.S.C. 1201, et seq., in 
order to encourage Federal employees to 
report government fraud, waste, and 
abuse and to provide protections for 
Federal employees who blow the 
whistle on government wrongdoing. 
Title 5, Section 1213 of the U.S. Code 
provides that Federal employees, former 
employees, or applicants for Federal 
employment may disclose to OSC 
information that they reasonably believe 
shows a violation of any law, rule, or 
regulation; gross mismanagement; a 
gross waste of funds; an abuse of 
authority; or a substantial and specific 
danger to public health or safety. 

Hence, since 1979, Congress has 
deputized Federal employees, as 
insiders, to safely disclose wrongdoing 
they witness or experience in the 
workplace. The Federal workforce has 
changed significantly since the passage 
of the CSRA, notably in the 
government’s increased reliance on 
contractors. In the modern workforce, 
employees of contractors, 
subcontractors, and grantees 
(collectively ‘‘contractors’’) often work 
alongside Federal employees, having 
similar if not identical duties. Thus 
contractors are similarly situated to 
observe or experience the same type of 
wrongdoing as are Federal employees. 
According contractors a safe channel to 
report wrongdoing within the 
government advances Congress’s 
purpose in enacting the CSRA and 
WPA. Moreover, Congress recently 
extended protection against retaliation 
to government contractors who make 
whistleblower disclosures, thereby 
signaling its encouragement of such 
disclosures. OSC deems such protection 
against retaliation a precondition to 
asking insiders to risk their careers to 
report wrongdoing. 

The National Defense Authorization 
Act of 2013 (NDAA), passed by 
Congress and signed into law by the 
President, established a ‘‘pilot program’’ 
to enhance contractor protection from 
reprisal for a disclosure of information 
that the contractor reasonably believes 
is evidence of gross mismanagement of 
a Federal contract or grant; a gross waste 
of Federal funds; an abuse of authority 
relating to a Federal contract or grant; a 

substantial and specific danger to public 
health or safety; or a violation of law, 
rule or regulation related to a Federal 
contract or grant. See Public Law 113– 
1421, 41 U.S.C. 4712. The NDAA 
closely tracks the language of the WPA 
concerning the type of information that 
may be disclosed and covers disclosures 
made to, among others, an ‘‘authorized 
official of the Department of Justice or 
other law enforcement agency.’’ 41 
U.S.C. 4712(a)(2)(E). As a law 
enforcement agency, and pursuant to its 
authority under 5 U.S.C. 1213, OSC may 
receive disclosures from employees of 
contractors who are covered by the 
NDAA. The disclosure must concern 
wrongdoing in the government as 
described in the NDAA. 

Under the proposed rule, OSC may 
receive disclosures from current and 
former contractors who allege retaliation 
for making a protected disclosure under 
41 U.S.C. 4712, if they work or worked 
on behalf of a U.S. government agency 
in which Federal employees are 
themselves eligible to file disclosures. 
The proposed rule will therefore limit 
OSC’s review of disclosures by Federal 
contractors to those who are both 
covered by the NDAA and working at 
agencies over which OSC already has 
jurisdiction pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 1213. 
For example, OSC lacks jurisdiction 
over employees of the U.S. Postal 
Service and, therefore, will not have 
jurisdiction over disclosures made by 
contractors working for the U.S. Postal 
Service. See OSC’s Web site at 
www.osc.gov for a complete listing of 
agencies over which OSC does not have 
jurisdiction. 

As with disclosures made by Federal 
employees pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 1213, 
any disclosure made by a contractor that 
involves foreign intelligence or 
counterintelligence information that is 
specifically prohibited by law or by 
Executive Order will be transmitted to 
the National Security Advisor, the 
Permanent Select Committee on 
Intelligence of the House of 
Representatives, and the Select 
Committee on Intelligence of the U.S. 
Senate. 5 U.S.C. 1213(j). The 
transmission will terminate OSC’s 
involvement with the disclosure. 

Once a disclosure is received from an 
eligible contractor, OSC will evaluate 
the information and make a 
determination as to whether there is a 
‘‘substantial likelihood’’ that it discloses 
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wrongdoing pursuant to the provisions 
of section 1213. A contractor working at 
a Federal facility, alongside Federal 
employees and under the line 
supervision of a Federal employee, is 
virtually in an identical posture to a 
Federal employee. As such, his/her 
disclosure will likely carry a 
comparable degree of reliability as that 
of a Federal employee. On the other 
hand, if a contractor’s situation differs 
greatly from that of a Federal employee, 
it is less likely that OSC will be able to 
find that the contractor has credible 
information about government 
wrongdoing needed to make a 
substantial likelihood finding. For 
example, an off-site contractor, or one 
not working under Federal line 
supervision, is much less likely to 
directly encounter government 
wrongdoing and, therefore, may not 
have sufficiently reliable information. 
For that reason, to meet the ‘‘substantial 
likelihood’’ threshold, he or she may be 
required to produce compelling 
documentary information establishing 
government wrongdoing. 

If OSC determines that a disclosure 
meets the ‘‘substantial likelihood’’ 
threshold, the Special Counsel will refer 
the matter to the relevant agency head, 
who will be required to conduct an 
investigation into the disclosure. The 
identity of a contractor who makes a 
disclosure to OSC will not be revealed 
without his or her consent, unless the 
Special Counsel determines that there is 
an imminent danger to public health or 
safety, or an imminent violation of 
criminal law. OSC does not consider 
anonymous disclosures. Any disclosure 
submitted anonymously will be referred 
to the Office of Inspector General at the 
appropriate agency. 

Contractors who wish to report 
government wrongdoing to OSC under 
this rule will be encouraged to use OSC 
Form 12, which is available at OSC’s 
Web site, www.osc.gov. Contractors who 
wish to report a prohibited personnel 
practice, including retaliation for 
whistleblowing, will be required do so 
through the NDAA’s pilot program 
delineated at 41 U.S.C. 4712. This rule 
will remain in effect as long as the 
provisions of the NDAA’s ‘‘pilot 
program’’ are in force. 

Procedural Determinations 
Administrative Procedure Act (APA): 

This action is taken under the Special 
Counsel’s authority at 5 U.S.C. 1212(e) 
to publish regulations in the Federal 
Register. Interested persons are invited 
to submit written comments on this 
proposed amendatory rulemaking. The 
comments will be carefully considered 
and any appropriate changes will be 

made before a final rule is adopted and 
published in the Federal Register. 

Executive Order 12866 (Regulatory 
Planning and Review): OSC does not 
anticipate that that this proposed rule 
will have significant economic impact, 
raise novel issues, and/or have any 
other significant impacts. Thus, this 
proposed rule is not a significant 
regulatory action under 3(f) of Executive 
Order 12866 and does not require the 
Office of Management and Budget to 
conduct an assessment of potential costs 
and benefits under 6(a)(3) of the order. 

Congressional Review Act (CRA): OSC 
has determined that this proposed rule 
is not a major rule under the 
Congressional Review Act as it is 
unlikely to result in an annual effect on 
the economy of $100 million or more; or 
to result in a major increase in costs or 
prices for consumers, individual 
industries, Federal, state, or local 
government agencies or geographic 
regions; or to have a significant adverse 
effect on competition, employment, 
investment, productivity, or innovation 
or on the ability of U.S.-based 
enterprises to compete in domestic and 
export markets. 

Regulatory Flexibility Act (RFA): The 
Special Counsel certifies that this 
proposed rule will not have a significant 
economic impact on a substantial 
number of small entities because it 
primarily affects wrongdoing in the 
Federal government. 

Unfunded Mandates Reform Act 
(UMRA): This proposed revision does 
not impose any Federal mandates on 
State, local, or tribal governments, or on 
the private sector within the meaning of 
the UMRA. 

National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA): This proposed rule will have 
no physical impact upon the 
environment and, therefore, will not 
require any further review under NEPA. 

Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA): This 
proposed rule does not impose any new 
recordkeeping, reporting, or other 
information collection requirements on 
the public. 

Executive Order 13132 (Federalism): 
This proposed revision does not have 
new Federalism implications under 
Executive Order 13132. 

Executive Order 12988 (Civil Justice 
Reform): This proposed rule meets 
applicable standards of 3(a) and 3(b)(2) 
of Executive Order 12988. 

List of Subjects in 5 CFR Part 1800 

Administrative practice and 
procedure, Government employees, 
Investigations, Law enforcement, 
Whistleblowing. 

For the reasons stated in the 
preamble, OSC proposes to amend 5 
CFR part 1800 as follows: 

PART 1800—FILING OF COMPLAINTS 
AND ALLEGATIONS 

■ 1. The authority citation for 5 CFR 
part1800 continues to read as follows: 

Authority: 5 U.S.C. 1212(e). 

■ 2. Section 1800.2 is revised to read as 
follows: 

§ 1800.2 Filing disclosures of information. 
(a) General. OSC is authorized by law 

(at 5 U.S.C. 1213) to provide an 
independent and secure channel for use 
by current or former Federal employees 
and applicants for Federal employment 
in disclosing information that they 
reasonably believe shows wrongdoing 
by a Federal agency. Additionally, OSC 
may receive disclosures of wrongdoing 
from current and former Federal 
contractors, subcontractors, and 
grantees (collectively, ‘‘contractors’’) 
that are cognizable under 41 U.S.C. 
4712. Upon receipt of a disclosure, 
whether from a current or former 
Federal employee or applicant or from 
a contractor or former contractor, OSC 
must determine whether there is a 
substantial likelihood that the 
information discloses a violation of any 
law, rule, or regulation; gross 
mismanagement; gross waste of funds; 
abuse of authority; or a substantial and 
specific danger to public health or 
safety. If OSC does make a substantial 
likelihood determination, it shall refer 
the information to the agency head 
involved for investigation and a written 
report on the findings to the Special 
Counsel, pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 1213(c). 
The law does not authorize OSC to 
investigate the subject of a disclosure. 

(b) Procedures for filing disclosures. 
Current or former employees, applicants 
for Federal employment, and current 
and former contractors, subcontractors, 
and grantees whose disclosures are 
cognizable under 41 U.S.C. 4712 may 
file a disclosure of the type of 
information described in paragraph (a) 
of this section with OSC. Such 
disclosures must be filed in writing 
(including electronically—see paragraph 
(b)(3)(iii) of this section). 

(1) Filers are encouraged to use Form 
OSC–12 (‘‘Disclosure of Information’’) to 
file a disclosure of the type of 
information described in paragraph (a) 
of this section with OSC. This form 
provides more information about OSC 
jurisdiction, and procedures for 
processing whistleblower disclosures. 
Form OSC–12 is available: 

(i) By writing to OSC, at: Office of 
Special Counsel, Disclosure Unit, 1730 
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M Street, NW., Suite 218, Washington, 
DC 20036–4505; 

(ii) By calling OSC, at: (800) 572–2249 
(toll-free), or (202) 254–3600 (in the 
Washington, DC area); or 

(iii) Online, at: http://www.osc.gov (to 
print out and complete on paper, or to 
complete online). 

(2) Filers may use another written 
format to submit a disclosure to OSC, 
but the submission should include: 

(i) The name, mailing address, and 
telephone number(s) of the person(s) 
making the disclosure(s), and a time 
when OSC can contact that person about 
his or her disclosure; 

(ii) The department or agency, 
location and organizational unit 
complained of; and 

(iii) A statement as to whether the 
filer consents to disclosure of his or her 
identity by OSC to the agency involved 
in connection with any OSC referral to 
that agency. 

(3) A disclosure can be filed in 
writing with OSC by any of the 
following methods: 

(i) By mail, to: Office of Special 
Counsel, Disclosure Unit, 1730 M Street 
NW., Suite 218, Washington, DC 20036– 
4505; 

(ii) By fax, to: (202) 254–3711; or 
(iii) Electronically, at: http://

www.osc.gov. 
Dated: January 14, 2015. 

Mark P. Cohen, 
Principal Deputy Special Counsel. 
[FR Doc. 2015–00753 Filed 1–21–15; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7405–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade 
Bureau 

27 CFR Part 9 

[Docket No. TTB–2015–0002; Notice No. 
146] 

RIN 1513–AC12 

Proposed Establishment of the Squaw 
Valley–Miramonte Viticultural Area 

AGENCY: Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and 
Trade Bureau, Treasury. 
ACTION: Notice of proposed rulemaking. 

SUMMARY: The Alcohol and Tobacco Tax 
and Trade Bureau (TTB) proposes to 
establish the approximately 44,690-acre 
‘‘Squaw Valley–Miramonte’’ viticultural 
area in Fresno County, California. The 
proposed viticultural area does not 
overlap any established viticultural 
area. TTB designates viticultural areas 
to allow vintners to better describe the 
origin of their wines and to allow 

consumers to better identify wines they 
may purchase. TTB invites comments 
on this proposed addition to its 
regulations. 

DATES: Comments must be received by 
March 23, 2015. 
ADDRESSES: Please send your comments 
on this notice to one of the following 
addresses: 

• Internet: http://www.regulations.gov 
(via the online comment form for this 
notice as posted within Docket No. 
TTB–2015–0002 at ‘‘Regulations.gov,’’ 
the Federal e-rulemaking portal); 

• U.S. Mail: Director, Regulations and 
Rulings Division, Alcohol and Tobacco 
Tax and Trade Bureau, 1310 G Street 
NW., Box 12, Washington, DC 20005; or 

• Hand delivery/courier in lieu of 
mail: Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and 
Trade Bureau, 1310 G Street NW., Suite 
200–E, Washington, DC 20005. 

See the Public Participation section of 
this notice for specific instructions and 
requirements for submitting comments, 
and for information on how to request 
a public hearing or view or obtain 
copies of the petition and supporting 
materials. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Karen A. Thornton, Regulations and 
Rulings Division, Alcohol and Tobacco 
Tax and Trade Bureau, 1310 G Street 
NW., Box 12, Washington, DC 20005; 
phone 202–453–1039, ext. 175. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Background on Viticultural Areas 

TTB Authority 

Section 105(e) of the Federal Alcohol 
Administration Act (FAA Act), 27 
U.S.C. 205(e), authorizes the Secretary 
of the Treasury to prescribe regulations 
for the labeling of wine, distilled spirits, 
and malt beverages. The FAA Act 
provides that these regulations should, 
among other things, prohibit consumer 
deception and the use of misleading 
statements on labels and ensure that 
labels provide the consumer with 
adequate information as to the identity 
and quality of the product. The Alcohol 
and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau 
(TTB) administers the FAA Act 
pursuant to section 1111(d) of the 
Homeland Security Act of 2002, 
codified at 6 U.S.C. 531(d). The 
Secretary has delegated various 
authorities through Treasury 
Department Order 120–01 (Revised), 
dated December 10, 2013, to the TTB 
Administrator to perform the functions 
and duties in the administration and 
enforcement of this law. 

Part 4 of the TTB regulations (27 CFR 
part 4) authorizes TTB to establish 
definitive viticultural areas and regulate 

the use of their names as appellations of 
origin on wine labels and in wine 
advertisements. Part 9 of the TTB 
regulations (27 CFR part 9) sets forth 
standards for the preparation and 
submission of petitions for the 
establishment or modification of 
American viticultural areas (AVAs) and 
lists the approved AVAs. 

Definition 

Section 4.25(e)(1)(i) of the TTB 
regulations (27 CFR 4.25(e)(1)(i)) defines 
a viticultural area for American wine as 
a delimited grape-growing region having 
distinguishing features, as described in 
part 9 of the regulations, and a name 
and a delineated boundary, as 
established in part 9 of the regulations. 
These designations allow vintners and 
consumers to attribute a given quality, 
reputation, or other characteristic of a 
wine made from grapes grown in an area 
to the wine’s geographic origin. The 
establishment of AVAs allows vintners 
to describe more accurately the origin of 
their wines to consumers and helps 
consumers to identify wines they may 
purchase. Establishment of an AVA is 
neither an approval nor an endorsement 
by TTB of the wine produced in that 
area. 

Requirements 

Section 4.25(e)(2) of the TTB 
regulations outlines the procedure for 
proposing an AVA and provides that 
any interested party may petition TTB 
to establish a grape-growing region as an 
AVA. Section 9.12 of the TTB 
regulations (27 CFR 9.12) prescribes the 
standards for petitions requesting the 
establishment or modification of AVAs. 
Petitions to establish an AVA must 
include the following: 

• Evidence that the region within the 
proposed AVA boundary is nationally 
or locally known by the AVA name 
specified in the petition; 

• An explanation of the basis for 
defining the boundary of the proposed 
AVA; 

• A narrative description of the 
features of the proposed AVA affecting 
viticulture, such as climate, geology, 
soils, physical features, and elevation, 
that make the proposed AVA distinctive 
and distinguish it from adjacent areas 
outside the proposed viticultural AVA; 

• The appropriate United States 
Geological Survey (USGS) map(s) 
showing the location of the proposed 
AVA, with the boundary of the 
proposed AVA clearly drawn thereon; 
and 

• A detailed narrative description of 
the proposed AVA boundary based on 
USGS map markings. 
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U.S. OFFICE OF SPECIAL COUNSEL (202) 254-3640 I (800) 572-2249 

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 

(Please print legibly or type and complete all. pertinent items. Enter ''NIA" (Not Applicable) or 
"Unknown" where appropriate.) 

2. Status: 

Current Federal Employee 

Former Federal Employee 

3. Contact Information: 

Telephone number(s): 

Fax number: 

PART 1: BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Mr. (~') Ms. ( 0) Mrs. ( 0) Miss ( 0) 

Applicant for Federal Employment ( ) 

Other (please specify): 

(__ (Office) Ext. -------------------- ------
( ) --------- (Cell) 

,• ( ) A-:::t:-IJ. I J p @;J 'jJt/),jt/it E-mail address: 

7. How did you first be~e aware that you could file a disclosure with OSC? 
OSC Brochure (./) OSC Poster ( ) OSC Speaker ( ) OSC Web Site ( ) 

Agency Personnel Office ( ) Union ( ) Co-worker ( ) News Story ( ) 

Other (please describe): ----------------,1-,C:.~~:-------------
Date (approximate): _,.,~../_

1

9L-1~:J=------------



DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 
Page 2 

8. If you are filing this complaint as a legal or other representative of the person making a disclosure, please 
supply the following information: 

Name I title of filer: Mr. ( 0) Ms. ( 0) Mrs. ( 0) Miss ( 0) 

JLZ;il 
9. Contact Information: 

Home or mailing address: /l/4 
Telephone number(s): ( ) (Home) 

( ) (Office) 

Fax number: ( ) 

E-mail address: 

II PART 2: DETAILS OF YOUR DISCLOSURE 

I. I know about the information I am disclosing here based on (check all that apply): 
I have personal and/or direct knowledge of events or records involved ( ) 
Other employees have told me about events or record involv. d ( ) 
Other source(s) ( ) 

(please explain): 

2. Please identify the U.S. government department or agency involved in your disclosure: 

3. 

{}f{ 
epartment or agency involved: 

'/II/I 

Gross mismanagement ( ) Gross waste of funds ( ) Abuse of authority ( 

Substantial and specific danger to public health ( ) 

Substantial and specific danger to public safety ( ) 

Ext. 

II 



DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 
Page 3 

6. Please describe the agency wrongdoing that you are disclosing, indicating how the agency's actions fit within 
the type(s) of wrongdoing that you checked in item 5. (Be as specific as possible about dates, locations and 
the identities and positions of all persons named. Also, please attach any documents that might support your 
disclosure. Continue on a separate sheet of paper if you need more space.) 

J1f d/Ja 1 #Jf ~ ~~ ~ 
J/c;ct tfoi{J / {Ncv/ ~f/Jtlft/ 
p f t) d(/J (}r0 t~ 1~ 

(If j ;fl/ ~~) 



DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 
Page 4 

PART 3: OTHER ACTIONS YOU ARE TAKING ON YOUR DISCLOSURE 

I. I have previously disclosed (or am disclosing) the violations alleged here to (complete all that apply): 

( ) Inspector General of department I agency involved Date: I I 
---

( ) Other office of department I agency involved Date: 1 1 
(please specify): - - _ 

( ) Department of Justice Date: I I 

( ) Other Executive Branch I department I agency 
(please specify): 

Date: I I 

( ) General Accounting Office (GAO) Date: I I 

( ) Congress or congressional committee 
(please specffy member or committee): 

Date: I I 

( ) Press I media (newspaper, television, other) 
(please specify): 

Date: I I 

2. If you disclosed the information reported here through any other channel described in question l, above, what 
is the current status of the matter? 

II PART 4: CONSENT, CERTIFICATION, AND SIGNATURE 

Do you consent to the disclosure o our name to others outside the Office of Special Counsel if it becomes 
necessary in taking fu on this matter? 

fmy name: 

Signature Date 

II 



DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 
Page 5 

I certify that all of the statements made in this complaint (including any continuation pages) are true, complete, and 
correct to the t of my knowledge and belief. I understand that a false statement or concealment of a material 

of en punishable by a fine of up to $10,000, imprisonment for up t five ye rs, or both. 18 

PART 5: PRIVACY ACT I PAPERWO 

Routine Uses. Limited disclosure of information from OSC files is needed to fulfill OSC's investigative, 
prosecutorial and related responsibilities. OSC has described 18 routine uses for information in its files in the 
Federal Register (F.R.), at 66 F.R. 36611 (July 12, 2001), and 66 F.R. 51095 (October 5, 2001). A copy of the 
routine uses is available from OSC on request. A summary of the routine uses appears below. 

OSC may disclose information from its files in the following circumstances: 

I. to disclose that an allegation of prohibited personnel practices or other prohibited activity has been filed; 

2. to disclose information needed by the Office of Personnel Management (OPM) for inquiries involving 
civil service laws, rules or regulations, or to obtain an advisory opinion; 

3. to disclose information about allegations or complaints of discrimination to entities concerned 
with enforcement of anti-discrimination laws; 

4. to the MSPB or the President, when seeking disciplinary action; 

5. to the involved agency, MSPB, OPM, or the President when OSC has reason to believe that a prohibited 
personnel practice has occurred, exists or is to be taken; 

6. to disclose information to Congress in OSC's annual report; 

7. to disclose information to third parties (without identifying the complainant unless OSC has the 
complainant's consent) as needed to conduct an investigation; obtain an agency investigation and report 
on information disclosed to the OSC whistleblower disclosure channel; or to give notice of the status or 
outcome of the investigation; 

8. to disclose information as needed to obtain information about hiring or retention of an employee; issuance 
of a security clearance; conduct of a security or suitability investigation; award of a contract; or issuance 
of a license, grant, or other benefit; 

9. to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for certain legislative coordination and clearance 
purposes; 



January 28, 2015

Ms. Lisa Terry, General Counsel
U.S. Office of Special Counsel (OSC)
1730 M St, NW
Suite 218
Washington, DC 20036
lterry@osc.gov

Subject: Comments on proposed rules about contractor disclosures “NPRM” Request that OSC
file an amicus curiae brief in Carson v. MSPB, docket no. 14-1306 at CADC

Dear Ms. Terry,

The U.S. Office of Special Counsel (OSC) issued, via the federal register, on January 22, 2015,
the proposed rule, “Revision of Regulations To Allow Federal Contractors, Subcontractors, and
Grantees To File Whistleblower Disclosures With the U.S. Office of Special Counsel.” 1

Per the guidance in the proposed rule, I submit the following comments:

There appears to be is a typographical error in the proposed rule.  Specifically, on page 4
of the proposed rule, the first new paragraph now begins:

Under the proposed rule, OSC may receive disclosures from current and former
contractors who allege retaliation for making a protected disclosure under 41 U.S.C.
4712, if they work or worked on behalf of a U.S. government agency in which Federal
employees are themselves eligible to file disclosures.

I think it should read:

Under the proposed rule, OSC may receive disclosures from current and former
contractors, if they work or worked on behalf of a U.S. government agency in which
Federal employees are themselves eligible to file disclosures.

My point is there is no necessary connection between the statutory right to make a whistleblower
disclosure to OSC and the statutory right to seek whistleblower protection from OSC.2

1 See
https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2015/01/22/2015-00753/revision-of-regulations-to-allow
-federal-contractors-subcontractors-and-grantees-to-file

2 Employees of some federal agencies, such as intelligence agencies, can make
whistleblower disclosures to OSC but cannot seek protection at OSC from agency whistleblower

1



I make a whistleblower disclosure, as a federal agency employee who is not employed at
OSC, per 5 U.S.C. §1213(g)(1), that OSC is abusing its authority and violating law with this
proposed rule. 3

Basis in law and fact of my whistleblower disclosure:

1. For a good number years now, I have been making the whistleblower disclosure that OSC
is unlawfully denying, since 1989, every American, including federal contractors,
subcontractors and grantees, their statutory right to make whistleblower disclosures to it
per 5 U.S.C. §1213(g)(1). 4

2. My analysis of why such “individuals” have this statutory right was previously
transmitted to OSC and can be found online. 5

3. A recent initial decision of the Merit Systems Protection Board (MSPB) found “the plain
reading of language of the statute” is that contractor employees in the Department of
Energy have such a statutory whistleblower disclosure right. 6 

4. OSC attorneys, including Special Counsel Lerner, take no exception to my statements
that, by current legal ethics, their primary professional duty as OSC attorneys is NOT to
follow the law, but to ENSURE any possible law-breaking by their client - OSC - remains
unexposed.7

reprisal.

3 I will submit the required OSC whistleblower disclosure form separately to OSC’s
whistleblower disclosure unit.

4 By “every American,” I mean every American who does not have a statutory right to
make whistleblower disclosures to OSC per 5 U.S.C. §1213(b) and (c).  

5 See http://whsknox.blogs.com/olc/sec-1213-g-analysis.pdf

6 See Carson v. Department of Energy, docket no. AT-1221-14-0520-W-1, initial decision
September 30, 2014, pages 8 and 9, http://whsknox.blogs.com/olc/initial-decision-9-30-14.pdf.
This initial decision is now being reviewed by the full MSPB.

7 No attorney at OSC has stated I lack “reasonable belief” in my claims of OSC law-
breaking, instead they explain why they are precluded, by legal ethics, from requesting an Office
of Legal Counsel (OLC) opinion of the issues, because it could well find their client - OSC - in
the wrong.  

2



5. This proposed rule directly contradicts two 1981 binding Office of Legal Counsel (OLC)
of Department of Justice opinions, which prohibits OSC from requiring an agency heads
to respond, per 5 U.S.C. §1213(c), to disclosures made by agency contractor employees
while allowing them to make informal referrals of such disclosures to the involved
agency.  The 1989 law, creating a separate whistleblower disclosure (i.e. §1213(g)(1))
process for everyone - including agency contractor employees - who do not have a
whistleblower disclosure right at OSC per 5 U.S.C. §1213(c), resulted from these Office
of Legal Counsel Opinions.  Contrary to the binding opinions from OLC, the proposed
rule states OSC has the legal authority to direct agency heads to respond to disclosures of
agency contractor employees, per 5 U.S.C. §1213(c). 8

6. By continuing to violate 5 U.S.C. §1213(g)(1) and in proposing this rule as a possible
ruse to evade exposure of its decades-long law-breaking failure to allow agency
contractor employees to make whistleblower disclosures to it, OSC apparently intends to
continue to prevent many other Americans from being able to exercise their statutory
whistleblower disclosure right at OSC. 9  This is an abuse of authority, but it is typical of
OSC, a decades-long, law-breaking fraud of a “law enforcement agency,” which has left
America much diminished and more threatened.

Respectfully,

_____/s/_______
Joseph Carson, PE
10953 Twin Harbour Drive
Knoxville, TN 37934
865-300-5831  

8 See 5 U.S. Op. Off. Legal Counsel 77, 1981 WL 30880 (O.L.C.)
http://whsknox.blogs.com/olc/olc-1981wl30880.pdf and 5 U.S. Op. Off. Legal Counsel 77, 1981
WL 30990 (O.L.C.) http://whsknox.blogs.com/olc/olc-1981wl30900.pdf

9 This includes individuals as patients at Veterans Administration facilities and employees
of facilities licensed by federal agencies, such as commercial nuclear power plants.  Bottom line,
OSC has never, not in 26 years since the law was enacted, transmitted a whistleblower disclosure
to an agency head per 5 U.S.C. §1213(g)(1), as the law requires a public record of such
transmittals at 5 U.S.C. §1219(a)(4) and OSC admits there are no such records. 

3



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

            I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have served the agency’s representative,
Pamela Gault, with a copy of the within and foregoing pleading by email at
pgault@osc.gov.  The Agency’s Representative has requested she be so served.  

I will also serve her by mail on or before February 18, 2015 at:

OSC
1730 M St, NW
Suite 218
Washington, DC 20036. 

Date: February 17, 2015

/s/
Joseph Carson, PE
Appellant
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